
Agenda\Licensing Committee\9 September 2015

Department: Democratic Services

Division: Corporate 

Please ask for: Rachel Whillis

Direct Tel: 01276 707319

Surrey Heath Borough Council

Surrey Heath House
Knoll Road
Camberley

Surrey GU15 3HD
Telephone: (01276) 707100
Facsimile: (01276) 707177

DX: 32722 Camberley
Web Site: www.surreyheath.gov.uk

E-Mail: democratic.services@surreyheath.gov.uk

Tuesday, 1 September 2015

To: The Members of the Licensing Committee
(Councillors: Bill Chapman (Chairman), Ian Sams (Vice Chairman), Nick Chambers, 
Mrs Vivienne Chapman, Surinder Gandhum, Ruth Hutchinson, Paul Ilnicki, 
Rebecca Jennings-Evans, Oliver Lewis, Jonathan Lytle, Bruce Mansell, Nic Price, 
Conrad Sturt, Pat Tedder and Valerie White)

In accordance with the Substitute Protocol at Part 4 of the Constitution, 
Members who are unable to attend this meeting should give their apologies and 
arrange for one of the appointed substitutes, as listed below, to attend.  
Members should also inform their group leader of the arrangements made.

Substitutes: Councillors Rodney Bates, Ian Cullen, David Lewis, Max Nelson, 
Wynne Price and Victoria Wheeler

Dear Councillor,

A meeting of the Licensing Committee will be held at the Council Chamber, Surrey Heath 
House on Wednesday, 9 September 2015 at 7.00 pm.  The agenda will be set out as 
below. 

Please note that this meeting will be recorded.

Yours sincerely

Karen Whelan

Chief Executive

AGENDA
Pages

Part 1
(Public)

1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Minutes  

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 24 June 2015.

3 - 4

3 Declarations of Interest  

Public Document Pack



Agenda\Licensing Committee\9 September 2015

Members are invited to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and 
non-pecuniary interests they may have with respect to matters which are 
to be considered at this meeting.  Members who consider they may have 
an interest are invited to consult the Monitoring Officer or the Democratic 
Services Officer prior to the meeting.

4 Taxi Licensing - Deregulation Act 2015  5 - 12

5 Taxi Licensing - Engine Capacity Requirements  13 - 18

6 Licensing Act 2003 - Summary of Decisions  19 - 28



Minutes\Licensing Committee\24 June 2015

Minutes of a Meeting of the Licensing 
Committee held at the Council 
Chamber, Surrey Heath House on 24 
June 2015 

+ Cllr Bill Chapman (Chairman)
+ Cllr Ian Sams (Vice Chairman) 

+
+
+

+
+
+

Cllr Nick Chambers
Cllr Mrs Vivienne Chapman
Cllr Surinder Gandhum
Cllr Ruth Hutchinson
Cllr Paul Ilnicki
Cllr Rebecca Jennings-Evans
Cllr Oliver Lewis

+
+
+
+
+
+

Cllr Jonathan Lytle
Cllr Bruce Mansell
Cllr Nic Price
Cllr Conrad Sturt
Cllr Pat Tedder
Cllr Valerie White

+  Present
-  Apologies for absence presented

In Attendance:  Cllr David Lewis and Cllr Dan Adams

1/L Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 September 2014 were confirmed and signed 
by the Chairman.

2/L Food Safety Service Plan 2015/16

The Committee was informed that the Food Standards agency required all food 
authorities to have a Food Safety Service Plan to ensure that national priorities 
and standards were addressed and delivered locally. 

Members considered the draft Food Safety Service Plan for 2015/16, which the 
Executive would be asked to approve at its meeting on 28 July 2015. The Plan 
followed the Food Standards Agency’s set format. 

It was noted that the number of food businesses which were ‘broadly compliant’ 
with food hygiene law remained high at 95%. This figure had increased steadily in 
the previous few years from 83% in 2009/10. Officers continued to work with the 
5% of businesses which were not broadly compliant in order to ensure that they 
improved their standards.  

The Committee was advised that the Council continued to support its two Primary 
Authority Partnerships (PAPs) with Exclusive Hotels, the owner of Pennyhill Park, 
and Krispy Kreme Doughnuts. 

RESOLVED to advise the Executive to approve the Food Safety 
Service Plan 2015/16, as set out at Annex A to the agenda report.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2 



Minutes\Licensing Committee\24 June 2015

3/L Licensing Sub Committee Minutes

The Chairman signed the minutes of the Licensing Sub Committee meetings 
which had taken place since the previous meeting. 

4/L Licensing Act 2003 - Summary of Decisions

The Committee received details of the decisions taken under delegated powers in 
respect of licence applications where no representations had been received from 
the responsible authorities or any other persons.

Note 1: It was noted for the record that Cllr Conrad Sturt declared that 
he was a Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises 
Supervisor for a premises within the borough.

Chairman 

Page 4



Portfolio: CommunityTaxi Licensing – Deregulation Act 2015

Ward(s) 
Affected:

All

Purpose

To report a change in legislation which revises the basis of duration of  
licences for drivers and operators, and to allow decisions to be made under 
powers delegated to the Executive Head – Community and to the Licensing 
Officer to grant licences for such lesser period as the Council thinks 
appropriate in the circumstances of the case. 

Background

1. The conditions and duration of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers 
Licences, together with Private Hire Operator’s Licences are regulated under 
the provisions of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
[LG(MP) Act]. Hitherto it has been practice that each licence has been 
granted for one year only although legislation has permitted vehicle and 
operators’ licences to be granted for up to three years and five years 
respectively.

Current Position

2. The Deregulation Act 2015 (the Act) gained Royal Assent on 26 March 2015 
with Commencement Orders bringing some provisions into effect during a 
variety of dates from April 2015 through to January 2016.The provisions 
relevant to this report come into effect on 1 October 2015.

3. Section 10 of the Act relates specifically to the duration of Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire driving licences, in addition to Private Hire operator’s 
licences, retaining the default duration of the driving licences to 3 years and 
the operator’s licence to 5 years, but to include the provision “or for such 
lesser period, specified in the licence, as the district council thinks appropriate 
in the circumstances of the case”.

4. The provisions of Section 10 of the Act, together with the original relevant 
provisions of LG(MP) Act are copied at Annex 1.

5. All drivers are currently required to undergo a triennial criminal record check 
with the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) and sign a disclosure form 
which enables officers to carry out a driving licence record check triennially 
and at any additional time over the following three years.

6. Drivers are also required to undergo a medical examination with the Council’s 
nominated medical practitioners every three years. The checks are required 
annually upon reaching the age of 60 years or at any age or upon 
recommendation by the medical practitioner.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 4 



7. The above requirements facilitate officers to determine whether drivers remain 
‘fit and proper’ to hold a licence as required by the LG(MP) Act.

8. Officers recommend that triennial criminal record, driving licence and checks 
continue in order to maintain the integrity of the ‘fit and proper’ standard and 
that in circumstances where there is less than three years left before further 
checks are required the duration of a hackney carriage or private hire drivers 
licence is reduced accordingly. 

9. Private Hire Operators are also required to be a ‘fit and proper’ person. 
However driving licence and medical checks are not required. 

10. The vast majority of private hire operators are also licensed drivers and 
therefore undergo frequent checks to ensure they remain a ‘fit and proper’ 
person to hold an operator’s licence. However, officers recommend that in 
circumstances where an operator is not a licensed driver a criminal record 
check is required every 3 years.

11. The scale of charges for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licence fees are 
set and agreed by this Committee on an annual basis. Currently Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire driver’s licences are set at £95 for an annual 
licence. Private Hire Operator’s licences incur a fee of £215 but reduced to 
£85 for a single vehicle operator.

12. Officers recommend that, for the remainder of the current financial year, 
where a licence is granted for a period longer than one year the fee charged 
is also increased on a pro rata basis and that thereafter fees be set by this 
committee at a future meeting. Any changes to the fee structure are subject to 
a notice being published in a local newspaper followed by a 28 day 
consultation period. In considering whether there has been a ‘variation’ 
requiring publication, section 70 (3) a) of the LG(MP)Act suggests that this is 
not necessary in order to bring about the changes officers recommend, as the 
maximum fees are not being varied, on a pro rata basis.

13. Although some drivers may welcome the change, others may consider it a 
financial burden especially where they are approaching retirement or looking 
for a change in career. Officers therefore recommend that in circumstances 
where a driver requests a licence for only one year rather than three, then that 
request is permitted. It should be noted that the local authority’s discretion as 
to whether a shorter period should be granted is not one that applies in 
exceptional circumstances. However, as with any exercise of discretion, there 
should be a reasoned explanation recorded.  The circumstances given above 
are likely to be those that will engage the discretion. It is currently unclear if 
government guidance will be provided in this regard.

Page 6



Recommendations

14. The Committee is advised to RESOLVE that

(i) licensed hackney carriage and private hire drivers continue to 
be subject to a triennial criminal record check, driving licence 
check and medical examination in order to maintain the integrity 
of the ‘fit and proper’ standard and that in circumstances where 
there is less than three years left before further checks are 
required the duration of a hackney carriage or private hire 
drivers licence is reduced accordingly;

(ii) in circumstances where a private hire operator is not a licensed 
driver a criminal record check be required every 3 years;

(iii) for the remainder of the current financial year, where a licence is 
granted for a period longer than one year the fee charged is also 
increased on a pro rata basis and that future fees be set at a 
future meeting; and

(iv) in circumstances where a licensed driver or private hire operator 
requests a licence for only one year rather than a longer period 
then that request is permitted.

Background Papers: None

Author: Derek Seekings 01276 707626
e-mail: derek.seekings@surreyheath.gov.uk

Head of Service: Tim Pashen  – Executive Head of Community

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Portfolio: CommunityTaxi Licensing – Engine Capacity 
Requirements

Ward(s) 
Affected:

All

Purpose
To consider a recommendation to reduce the minimum engine capacity 
requirement from 1600cc to 1300cc for Hackney Carriages and Private Hire 
Vehicles and to remove any engine capacity requirement for vehicles powered 
by an electric hybrid system.  

Background

1. The conditions and requirements relating to Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Vehicles are regulated by the Council under the provisions of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (The Act). 

Current Position

2. Every district council which adopted The Act, in the mid-1970s, has had the 
right to set conditions and regulations relating to Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Vehicles on the grounds of public safety. One of the conditions 
set in Surrey Heath relates to a minimum engine capacity of 1600cc being 
required for all licensed vehicles. 

3. Since this time the automotive industry has greatly improved safety standards 
and the efficiency of power units. Most diesel powered cars are now 
turbocharged while others now benefit from electrically assisted hybrid 
engines.

4. This chart lists a sample of 4 door saloon cars which were available to the 
trade in the mid-1970s:

Make Model Fuel Type Exact  
Capacity

BHP

Peugeot 504 diesel 1948cc 56
Ford Cortina 

1600GL
petrol 1593cc 73

Vauxhall Victor SL petrol 1597cc 79
Hillman Hunter petrol 1725cc 79
Morris Marina petrol 1799cc 83
Ford Cortina 

2000GL
petrol 1993cc 101

Vauxhall Victor 2000SL petrol 1975cc 108

5. As a comparison, this chart shows a sample of cars currently available but are 
prohibited from being granted a licence due to their engine capacity.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5 



Make Model Fuel Type Exact  
Capacity

BHP

Toyota Prius 1.5 VVTi petrol/hybrid 1497cc 74 + electric
Ford B-Max 1.5 

TDCI
diesel 1498cc 93

Peugeot 5008 1.6 diesel 1560cc 110
Volkswagen Golf Estate 1.4 petrol 1395cc 123
Kia Carens 1.6 diesel 1591cc 133
Vauxhall Zafira Tourer diesel 1598cc 134
Vauxhall Zafira Tourer petrol 1398cc 138
Ford Galaxy 1.5 

Eco
petrol 1499cc 157

6. Other local and Surrey Councils limits are listed for comparison purposes

Local Authority Minimum Engine Capacity
Runnymede 1300cc
Spelthorne 1300cc
Woking 1300cc
Guildford 1400cc (not applicable to electric hybrid vehicles)
Waverley 1575cc
Hart 1600cc
Surrey Heath 1600cc
Bracknell Forest No limit but HC must be wheelchair accessible
Rushmoor No limit but HC must be approved & wheelchair 

accessible

7. The current engine capacity limit of 1600cc is considered by Officers to be an 
unnecessary burden on the taxi trade and to inhibit the trade from using less 
polluting and more efficient smaller engine, or hybrid electric cars. 

8. The provisions of Section 47 (1) and 48 (2) of the Act allow the Council to 
impose such conditions as may be considered necessary are copied at Annex 
1.

Recommendations

9. The Committee is advised to resolve that the current minimum engine 
capacity limit for Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles be reduced 
from 1600cc to 1300cc and that any engine capacity requirement for 
vehicles powered by an electric hybrid system be removed. 

Background Papers: None

Author: Derek Seekings – Licensing Officer 
e-mail: derek.seekings@surreyheath.gov.uk

Head of Service: Tim Pashen  – Executive Head of Community

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Portfolio: Non-
executive 
function

Licensing Act 2003 – Summary of Decisions

Ward(s) 
Affected:

All

Purpose

To report decisions that have been taken in respect of licence applications 
that have been dealt with under powers delegated to the Executive Head of 
Community and to the Licensing Officer. 

Background

1. Details of decisions taken under delegated powers in relations to applications, 
representations etc have to be reported to the Licensing Committee in 
accordance with the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.

Current Position

2. In accordance with the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 powers have 
been delegated to the Executive Head of Community to determine 
applications for premises licences, club premises certificates and personal 
licences where no representations have been received from responsible 
authorities or interested parties.

3. If representations are received, consideration has to be given as to whether 
such representations are relevant, are not vexatious or frivolous and have 
been submitted in accordance with statutory requirements.  No 
representations have been rejected on the grounds since the last report on 
these matters to the Committee.

4. When representations have been received authority is delegated to the 
Licensing Sub-Committee to determine the licence following consideration of 
these representations. 

5. A summary of the decisions that have been taken in respect of applications 
that have been considered and determined since the last meeting of the 
Committee is attached at Annex A.  These details are submitted for 
information only and do not require ratification by the Committee.

Recommendation

6. The Committee is advised to NOTE this report.

Background Papers: None

Author: Derek Seekings Licensing Officer
e-mail: derek.seekings@surreyheath.gov.uk

Head of Service: Tim Pashen  – Executive Head of Community

Page 19

Agenda Item 6 



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Taxi Licensing - Deregulation Act 2015
	Deregulation Act 2015 Annex 1

	5 Taxi Licensing - Engine Capacity Requirements
	Taxi Engine Size Annex 1

	6 Licensing Act 2003 - Summary of Decisions
	Delegated Applications Annex A


